
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
WINDHAM, CT 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
October 4, 2007 
 
The Windham Zoning Board of Appeals held its meeting on October 4, 2007 in Town 
Hall.  Chairman Ernest Eldridge called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Members 
present were Al Beaulieu, Charles Krich, Donald Potter, Ernest Eldridge, Gerald Hart and 
Jose Cruz.  Also present was Town Planner James Finger. 
 
 

1) Vincent & Kelly Gamache, 54 Scarborough Road, Windham – variance from 
accessory use restrictions and side yard setback requirements to build a 32’ X 48’ 
garage. 
 
Planner Finger’s staff report dated September 28, 2007 explained that this is a 
continuation of the public hearing on the application for a variance from the 
accessory use restrictions and side yard setback requirements to build a 32’ X 48’ 
garage.  Finger encouraged board members who attended a recent site walk of the 
property to report their observations.   

 
 Ernest Eldridge recused himself from voting on this application. 
 

Mr. Gamache spoke to his request to build a 32 X 48’, 4-bay garage.  He said the 
height of the garage will be 22 feet.  The building will be constructed of wood 
framing and will have vinyl siding, said Gamache.  
 
Board member Al Beaulieu reported that he went on the site walk.  He said he 
feels the site is large enough for the garage as it is proposed.  The applicant is 15 
feet away from the sideline instead of the required 20 feet.  If he goes any closer 
to the house he will have to take down 3 Dogwood trees, said Beaulieu.  He is 
going to make his driveway wider, which will necessitate removing a few of the 
Oak trees, he added.  He said the septic tank is located in the center rear portion of 
the property, while his leach field is to the very left side of the building and the 
well is located in the front of the house. I feel this is best location for the garage 
and the area is big enough to accommodate the larger garage, he concluded.  
Board member Charles Krich said he also attended the site walk.  He asked if the 
vinyl siding proposed for the garage will match the other buildings.  Mr. Gamache 
said it will match the shed, and added that eventually he would like to add vinyl 
siding to the house to match the garage.  Board member Gerald Hart referred to 
the height of the proposed garage.  Mr. Gamache said he measured the side of the 
building where the garage is proposed and the existing house is 19’ high, but 3’ 

 1



on that side of the building is in the ground.  The height of the garage is proposed 
at 22 feet, he said.  Al Beaulieu said a property down the street has a good sized 
garage or shed in back of the house and Mr. Gamache’s garage will look no 
different.  Board member Donald Potter said he also attended the site walk and 
feels the garage will fit in very nicely in the proposed location of the property. 
 
Audience comments: 1) Richard Raye, speaking on behalf of his daughter, 
Hillary, who is an abutting neighbor, said the proposed garage is bigger than the 
house that he lives in and questioned why Mr. Gamache is requesting a 5 foot 
variance when there are 26 feet on the other side of the property.  This clearly 
impinges on my daughter’s rights, he said.  When she opens her window she is 
going to have a building the size of her house 40 feet away.  And she may be 
looking into something that may or may not have a window in it.  Also, why the 
garage is so close to the road when there is plenty of room in the back, asked 
Raye.  Board member Al Beaulieu said it would be difficult to put the garage in 
the back because of the septic tank and leach filed.  Mr. Raye said this is a huge 
building to put between two houses.  We haven’t seen any renderings of what the 
garage will look like, but I feel the garage as it is proposed will certainly decrease 
property values in the neighborhood. 2) Brian Taylor said he lives two houses up 
from the Gamache property.  He said his concerns relate to the appearance and 
character of the neighborhood and how that will be maintained.  He said he is 
concerned about having a building there that looks like an industrial storage 
building.  I don’t see a rendering of what the building will look like, but I think 
there are going to be very large front doors, he said.  He asked if the building will 
have windows and vinyl siding?  Mr. Gamache said the building will have vinyl 
siding and he is considering putting some windows on the house side of the 
building.  Mr. Taylor said his concern is what happens if Mr. Gamache sells his 
property and a new owner does not maintain the property as Mr. Gamache has.  
Mr. Gamache said he has no control over how someone else might maintain the 
property if he were to sell it.  Mr. Taylor said if this is approved on the premise 
that it is going to look good, is that going to be true forever.  Noting that the 
neighbors have legitimate concerns Planner Finger offered an alternate proposal.  
He suggested moving the building to the very back of the property and in that way 
you might not see the overhead doors quite as much across the street. Board 
member Beaulieu said Mr. Gamache said he would like to maintain as much 
backyard area as he can for a play area for his children.  Mr. Taylor concluded his 
comments by saying this is a unique neighborhood and this is a very unusual 
building for Windham.  3) Peter Mattsas, who lives across the street, said he is 
concerned how the proposed building will affect the aesthetic values of the 
neighborhood.  He said while Mr. Gamache is an excellent property keeper, and 
probably has the nicest yard on the street, I am concerned about what will happen 
later on if he sells the property. A building can go up and if it is not taken care of, 
no matter what size it is, it will depress the neighborhood. Chairman Eldridge said 
it appears that neighbors are looking for a rendering of what the garage will look 
like.   
 

 2



The discussion continued.  Board member Charles Krich said he understands the 
neighbor’s concerns and questioned whether the garage could be moved to the 
rear of the property.  I don’t think I can support this where he wants to put it, said 
Krich.  Donald Potter said he would also like to see it moved back.  He has plenty 
of land to do so and the neighbors might be more receptive if it were moved back.  
Mr. Gamache said there is a shed in the back and that would have to be moved. 
All the landscaping would have to be moved as well.  He said, I want to have the 
driveway tarred, and if I have to tar all the way back it wouldn’t be feasible with 
the price of tar.  Hilary Raye said her concern is not with the garage itself, but I 
didn’t think it was going to be outside my bedroom window.  She said moving the 
garage back 20 feet would make a big difference in the view from her house and 
her driveway. 
 
Planner Finger said his primary concern is if he sells the property he has a 
commercial size building there with doors that are 14’ high.  If he were agreeable 
to moving it back I think the neighbors would be more receptive.  Board member 
Al Beaulieu asked Mr. Gamache, if you were to move it back 20 feet would that 
put you to the rear of your house?  Mr. Gamache said it would probably be equal 
to the backside of the house.  Chairman Eldridge said Mr. Beaulieu is talking 
about moving the garage back 20 feet so that it is equal with the back of both 
houses.  He said we also need to set some limitations on the use of the building.  
Planner Finger suggested that the board impose a restriction that the building shall 
not be used for any commercial activities except for those permitted in the district.  
Board member Donald Potter asked the neighbors if they would still have a 
problem with the garage if he were to move it back 20 feet.  Hiliary Raye said she 
would not have an objection to the garage if it is moved back 20 feet.  Mr. Taylor 
said if the garage is moved back it will take on an entirely different look and 
certainly be more acceptable than being even with the house in the front.  So, I am 
all for that and I think that would satisfy any concerns that I have.  Mr. Gamache 
said although he would prefer not to encroach on his backyard because his 
children play out there, he was agreeable to moving the garage back 20 feet to 
make it even with the back of his house as well as the back of the neighbor’s 
house. 
 
As there were no other comments the public hearing was closed.  Al Beaulieu 
made a motion to grant a variance to allow a 15’ setback from the side property 
line in order to build a 32’ X 48’ garage subject to the following conditions: 1) the 
garage will be moved back (approximately 20 feet) so that it is even with the rear 
of the house, and 2) the building cannot be utilized for any commercial activity 
other than what is permitted in the district.  Gerald Hart seconded the motion.  
 
Discussion on the motion - Charles Krich encouraged the applicant to maintain 
the residential character of the neighborhood. 
 
Al Beaulieu amended his motion to add a stipulation that the garage is not to be 
used for any leased purposes.  Gerald Hart seconded the amended motion.  Voting 

 3



in favor of the motion were Beaulieu, Hart, Potter, Krich and Cruz.  The motion 
carried. 
 
The meeting was recessed at 8:10 P.M. and was reconvened at 8:15 P.M.   
 

2) Domenico & Maria Rosa Pillari, 45 Wilson Street, Willimantic – variance 
from Sections 3.10.2, 35.3, 35.5 for addition to house – expansion of non-
conforming prohibited use in the C-2 Zone, and side yard setback. 

 
The hearing was not opened, as the applicant was not in attendance.  

 
3) Action on the minutes of September 6, 2007 was deferred until the next meeting. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 P.M.  The next meeting will be held on November 1, 
2007. 
 
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     Lillian Murray, Clerk 

 4


